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Split Decision: RESPA Provides Private Right to
Sue Lender on Settlement Charge Markupsin
Third Circuit Court of Appeals

On August 4, 2005, the
U.S. Circuit Court of Ap-
pealsfor the Third Circuit
released amuch anticipated
opinion in the case of Fran-
cis Santiagov. GMAC
Mortgage Group, Inc. The
decision in this case repre-
sents the most recent en-
dorsement of aprivate
cause of action under
RESPA Section 8 (b) for
settlement charge markups.

value of the funding ser-
vice was $20.00, and
GMAC charged Santiago
more than that amount for
providing the service or
“overcharged” for the ser-
vice.

On appeal to the Third
Circuit Court of Appealsin
Philadelphia, Pennsylvania,
the Appellate Court over-

turned
However, of greater importance for ~ the Dis-
In Santiago, title agents is the fact that the Third trict ,
the borrower o _ ) Court’s
alleged that Circuit became the third of six federal order of
in January of appeals courts to permit a private dismissal
2(_)02' he ob- cause of action for markups. _On the
tained aloan issue of
for ahome markups

from GMAC. In connec-
tion with the loan, GMAC
charged and collected fees
from Santiago for settle-
ment services, including an
$85.00 tax servicefee, a
$20.00 flood certification
fee, and a $250.00 funding
fee. GMAC fully disclosed
these charges to Santiago.
However, Santiago alleged
that GMAC retained third
party vendorsto perform
the tax and flood certifica-
tion services, and charged
him more for these services
than the amount paid by
GMAC tothevendorsor
“marked up” the service.

In addition, Santiago al-

and affirmed the District
Court’ sorder of dismissal

ontheissue of overcharges.

Thus, in the opinion of the
Third Circuit, thereisno
private cause of action for
overcharges thrr '~k
RESPA Sec-
tion 8 (b).
However, of
greater impor-
tancefor title
agentsisthe
fact that the
Third Circuit
becamethe
third of six
federal ap-
peals courts
topermit a

leged that the reasonable private cause

Inside this issue:

of action for markups. The
case has been remanded to

the district court for further
proceedings on the markup
case.

Markupslllegal?

The Court in Santiago
compared markup charges
to kickbacks, which are
specifically prohibited by
RESPA Section 8(b). The
court opined that in the
kickback arrangement, the
consumer would givethe
settlement service provider
$100 for aservice, the set-
tlement service provider
would givethe third party
vendor $100 for that ser-
vice, and the third party
vendor would return $20 to
the settlement service pro-
vider as akickback for the
referral of business.
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Split Decison: RESPA Provides Private Right to Sue Lender on Settlement
ChargeMarkupsin Third Circuit Court of Appeals (continued from page 1).

In amarkup arrangement, the consumer
still givesthe settlement service provider
$100 for aservice, but the settlement
service provider

keeps $20 and gives . :
thethird party ven- The score is now tied at three
dor $80 for the ser- circuits apiece. Three appellate

vice. Inboth scenar-
ios, the borrower has
been charged $100,
the settlement ser-
vice provider has
earned $20 for aserviceit did not per-
form, and the third party vendor has
earned $80 for aserviceit did perform.
The Court found the comparison between
kickbacks and markups compelling.

have said no.

While the Court overturned the dismissal
of thedistrict court proceeding, the Third
Circuit did not equivocally state that
markups violate RESPA Section 8 (b).
Rather, the decision in Santiago only
permitsthe action to proceed to trial at
thedistrict court level. There may be
mitigating factors presented by GMAC at
trial to defusethis action, such asthe
following:

Whether the markup charges
represented ancillary chargesto
justify the increase?

Whether the markup was rea-
sonablein light of the ancillary
servicesprovided?

Whether the extra services
were already included in some
other settlement service charge
paid by the borrower?

What Now?

At thisjuncture, there are six federal
appellate courts that have now reviewed
theissue of whether markups areillegal
or permit a private cause of action under
RESPA Section 8(b). The scoreisnow
tied at three circuits apiece. Three appel-

courts have said yes and three

late courts have said yes and three have
said no. Ohio title agents are bound by
the decisions of the Sixth Circuit Court of
Appea swhich has heretofore
not entertained the issue of
settlement charge markups
under RESPA Section 8(b).
However, the Company is
quite certain that achallenge
will beraised. Thus, al title
agents should be aware that the
imposition of settlement
charge markupsis aclosely watched sub-
ject by industry and consumers alike.

The question asto whether markups are
illegal isan unresolved issue. A possible
U.S. Supreme Court challenge could be
contemplated by GMAC in the Santiago
case, thereby further delaying the effect
of asubsequent ruling. However, at this
pointintimeit isimpossible to defini-
tively provide guidanceto title agents
concerning the ramifications of this mat-
ter. Rather, the purpose of this memoran-
dumisillustrative. Thisissuewill remain
inlimbo until the courts resolve the obvi-
ous appellate court conflict. Title agents
should closely monitor this case and we
will provide updatesaccordingly.

Second Major Affiliated Business Ar -
rangement Class Action L awsuit Filed
in Ohio

The second Ohio class action lawsuit
involving sham affiliated business ar-
rangements has been filed in U.S. District
Court, Northern District of Ohio, Cleve-
land under the heading Shahan, et al. v.
Tower City Title Agency, Inc., et al .
Case No. 05CV1983. Unlike
the Pettrey case which re-
mains pending in the federal
district court in Cleveland,
Ohio, the Shahan casein-
volves amortgage broker
driven AfBA and anational
title insurance underwriter,
First American Title Insur-
ance Company. Here arethe

Plaintiffs, Roger D. Shahan and LeitaE.
Shahan, filed a class action lawsuit
against Tower City Title Agency, Inc.,
Tower City Title Agency, LLC and sev-
era unknown mortgage brokersand title
insurance underwriters. These recent
home buyers seek relief from the alleged
predatory practicesof Tower City and its
affiliates of an alleged sham affiliated
business entity (Tower City LLC) for
violations of federal and state law. First
American Title Insurance Company isa
co-owner of Tower City Title Agency,
LLC.

The Shahans are represented by Edward
G. Kramer and David G. Oakley staff
attorneys with the Fair Housing Law
Clinicwhichisajoint project of THE
HOUSING ADVOCATES, INC. and
CLEVELAND-MARSHALL COLLEGE
OF LAW, CLEVELAND STATE UNI-
VERSITY, the same attorneyswho are
representing the plaintiffsin the Pettrey
case. Thisisthesecond anti-kickback
RESPA classaction filed in Ohio and
thefirst to allege dir ect violations of
RESPA against mortgage broker -
styled AfBAs.

The Shahansfiled their lawsuit in Fed-
eral Court in Cleveland, Ohio and it has
been assigned to U.S. District Judge Dan
Polster. In the complaint the Shahan's
claim that:

aTower City Title Agency, Inc. relies
heavily on mortgage lenders, mortgage
brokers, and real estate brokersto obtain
business. In order to promoteitstitle
services, Tower City Title Agency, Inc.,
created Tower City Title Agency, LLC—
which is an alleged sham entity
—asaway to pay referral fees
and kickbacks to the referring
entity at the expense of the
borrower and in circumvention
of the provisions of the Real
Estate Settlement Procedures
Act (“RESPA™).

b. The Defendants’ scheme was that
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Split Decision: RESPA Provides Private Right to Sue L ender on Settlement
Charge Markupsin Third Circuit Court of Appeals (continued from page 2).

title work from amortgage broker, prom-
ising that the mortgage broker could
make additional money for each loan
referred for closing and title work
without performing additional work.
Tower City Title Agency, LLC ap-
peared on the settlement documents
in transactions closed by Tower City
Title Agency, Inc. as an entity that
had performed bona fide and substan-
tid title or closing serviceswhen it is
alleged that the LL C performed little
or no work in connection with the
transaction.

c. Additionally, the fees attributable to
the LLC were in addition to the custom-
ary and usual feethat Tower City Title
Agency, Inc. charged for the transaction.

The lawsuit was filed under the federa
Real Estate Settlement Procedures Act of
1974, asamended, 12 U.S.C. § 2601 et

e -
- E

seg. (12 U.S.C. 2602(7)), the Ohio Con-
sumer Sales Practices Act, Ohio Revised
Code 88 1341 et seq. and common law
torts of civil conspiracy and negligent

misrepresentation.

The size of the Shahan’s classis not
known until discovery isdone, but it
could be several thousand recent home
buyerswho have used mortgage brokers
or loan officersthat are affiliated with
Tower City Title Agency, LLC and/or its
affiliates. The lawsuit requests damages
which would be tripled under the law,
punitive damages and attorney fees.

Unigue RESPA Section 8 Class Action Filed Against RE/MAX in California

(Source: www.respanews.com, August 23, 2005)

A class-action suit has been filed against
aCaliforniaRE/MAX branch and United
Title Co. aleging illegal kickbacks, fraud
and unfair competition. The lawsuit,
filedin May inthe U.S. District Court in
the Southern District of Cdlifornia, al-
legesthat United Title and the RE/MAX
branch violated the anti-kickback provi-
sions of RESPA.

Alleged kickbacksin thereal estatetitle
insurance arena have taken center stage
this year, sparked by a Colorado inquiry
into title insurance practices. John Gara-
mendi, California'sinsurance regulator,
announced in July that three major title
insurers would pay more than $37 million
to settle charges of kickbacksto lenders,
builders and Realtors.

Thelawsuit isaclass action suit on be-
half of everyone who sold or purchased a
homein Californiausing RE'MAX as
their agent or broker "and wereinduced
by RE/MAX to use the services of United
Title," according to the complaint. The
plaintiffs are asking for damages of up to
three times the fees they paid and also
seek an injunction barring all defendants
from giving or getting kickbacks and
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failing to disclose they arein affiliated
business arrangements.

Thesix plaintiffsnamed inthelegal pa-
pers are San Diego residents Felix and
Linda Rodriguez, Laura Willis, Rosario
and Susan Villareal and Ruth Warren.
The six say when
they bought San
Diego homesus-

ggnn:z rgé:rn defendants from giving or getting
o kickbacks and failing to disclose th
mended United 9 ey

Titlefor either title
Or escrow services
or both.

The lawsuit alleges that United Title paid
a"bonus' to RE/MAX for referralsin
violation of RESPA. RESPA states, "No
person shall give and no person shall
accept any fee, kickback, or thing of
value pursuant to any agreement or un-
derstanding-jthat businessincident to or a
part of area estate settlement service-
ishall be referred to another person.”
Also, the complaint alleges that United
Titleand RE/MAX violated RESPA's
disclosure provisions.

The plaintiffs are asking for damages

; of up to three times the fees they paid
Ing REIMAX sdles and also seek an injunction barring all

are in affiliated business arrangements.

"They (the six) either were not told there
was a business rel ationship between
RE/MAX and United, or the disclosure
was not sufficient," said Kevin Y oung,
one of the attorneysfor the plaintiffs.

Thissuit, Rodriguez v. United Title, is
unusual because past anti-
kickback lawsuits, aswell
as enforcement actions
have centered on title
agencies. Thisisbecause
itisillegal under RESPA
for titleinsurersto offer
kickbacks, but not for real
estate brokerages or other
professionals to accept them, industry
sourcessaid. "Thebroker (RE/MAX) is
included for unfair business practices
under Califor-
nia's business
and professions
code," said
Kevin Y oung,
attorney for the
six plaintiffs.

InMay,ina
more typical example, an Illinois man
filed a class-action lawsuit against First
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Unique RESPA Section 8 Class Action Filed Against RE/MAX in

California (continued from page 3).

American Title Insurance Co. aleging the
company misrepresented closing charges,
according to mediareports.

In July, three major title insurers settled
with John Garamendi, California'sinsur-
anceregulator, in aprobe of their prac-
tices. The companieswereaccused of
paying $25.4 million inillegal kickbacks
to various lenders, builders and Realtors
in exchange for the referral of titleinsur-
ance business. Thetitle insurers settled

without admitting wrongdoing.

Garamendi, who isalso co-chair of the
Title Insurance Working Group within
the National Association of Insurance
Commissioners, has worked with Colo-
rado and Washington stateinsurance
regulatorsto probe aseries of alleged
phony reinsurance contracts between title
companies and subsidiaries of rea estate
agents, developersand lenders.
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